No. 45479-3-II

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS, DIVISION II, OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

JOYCE SMITH, ESTATE OF JAMES SMITH, ET AL,

Appellants,

I. INTRODUCTION

The Trial Court erred in dismissing the State of Washington, ruling that the State owed no duty after failing to supervise dangerous offender (Goolsby) in the field in the first place, and then were negligent in following procedures in issuing a DOC secretary's warrant. This is a case where the community or "field" supervision was non-existent for this violent, murderous gang member. As stated by appellants' expert William Stough (the pre-eminent expert in Corrections in Washington State), the most important aspects of community supervision of a violent offender includes the community correctional officer conducting field (community supervision) of an offender and enforcing the condition that the offender is living at a location approved by the DOC. In this case, the community correction officer never supervised Mr. Goolsby in the community, not one time, and Mr. Goolsby never lived at a DOC approved location. In this case, DOC not only breached the standard of care, they exercised no care with regard to the most important aspects of supervision. After the day that CCO Lang picked up Goolsby from Monroe prison, he was not supervised in the community, never went to drug treatment (supposed to go 3 times a week), never got on his mental health medications and never provided a valid address. This naturally led to offender Goolsby to

quickly go back to his life of drugs, guns, "gang banging" and violence.

The Trial Court, Judge Serko, essentially followed her ruling in a similar

case, the case of Janet Husted et al., v. State of Washington, Court of

Appeals No. 44841-6, currently under consideration by this Court. Judge

Serko stated on the record before appellants' attorney even argued:

The Court: Are you familiar - I think it was against the State in a similar case, the Wal-Mart shooting?

Mr. Ahearn: That was my case, Your Honor.

The Court: That was your case, okay. Appreciate that. And that was in this Courtroom.

Mr. Ahearn: Yes, it was.

The Court: And I dismissed it?

Mr. Ahearn: Yes, you did.

The Court: Based on the fact that he was on warrant status, is that right?

Mr. Ahearn: Yes.

The Court: All right.

Mr. Ahearn: And just so the Court knows, that is on appeal.

The Court: I hate to be inconsistent but, I mean, that was the case that immediately came to my mind when I read the facts of this case.

Report of Proceedings, Page 9:7-10:5. The Court then ruled after

appellant's argument:

I've heard enough. I mean, I did consider almost these same facts in the other case; although, frankly, <u>I think this</u> <u>case is even more extreme than the other case</u> and I don't find support in the law or in the cases that have interpreted the law for a duty given these particular facts. And certainly, as Mr. Ahearn has said, if there was even a duty, the proximate cause issue would foreclose continuing this case on to a jury. So for those reasons, I'm going to grant the defendant's motion for summary judgment. Obviously this is an issue that the Court of Appeals is going to be considering in the short term because that other case is on appeal, and the name of it escapes me.

Mr. Ahearn: Husted.

RP 15:16-16:4.

The Trial Court has misinterpreted the legal duty, law and causation and obviously decided this case intentionally consistent with Husted v. State of Washington, No 44841-6 and is essentially demanding the Court of Appeals to tell her otherwise.

II. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

The Trial Court erred in dismissing the State of Washington, ruling that the State owed no duty to supervise Antwone Goolsby after they were grossly negligent in supervising the offender and negligently issued a secretary's warrant.

III. ISSUES RELATING TO ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

1. Did the Trial Court misapply the rules of summary judgment, when it dismissed on summary judgment grounds Plaintiff's claims? RP 15-17. Offender Goolsby was subject to Community Custody supervision by the State. Goolsby demonstrated that he never took his community custody seriously and DOC eventually issued a Secretary's warrant for his arrest, after Goolsby repeatedly defied supervision, but did not follow its own policies in the execution of this warrant. Did the negligent issuance of the Secretary's warrant terminate the State's duty to supervise?

2. The Plaintiffs established that the State breached its duty to supervise Goolsby, and, that if the State had not breached its duty, Goolsby would have been unable to participate in the murder of James Smith in a different county where he was not supposed to be. Did the Trial Court err to the extent it dismissed the case based on a lack of proximate cause?

3. Does qualified immunity apply where the plaintiffs have only sued the State of Washington, and not any individual state employees?

IV. STATEMENT OF FACTS

A. FACTUAL SUMMARY

The lives of the Plaintiffs forever changed on August 5, 2009, when felon Antwone Goolsby ("Goolsby") gunned down and murdered James Smith in Tacoma less than 8 months after his release from prison. CP 214, 265-269 271-272, 377-383, 385-389, 564-566, 568-577. On this date, Goolsby drove to Tacoma and confronted James Smith for allegedly saying something disrespectful to his former girlfriend and shot him multiple times, killing him. CP 537-550. He was convicted of this murder on May 11, 2012. CP 552-562. Joyce Smith, James Smith mother, conceded that she does not have an individual claim and plaintiff is not making an economic loss claim; Ms. Smith is only the personal representative. This claim is about the damages suffered by the minor children of James Smith (loss of love, affection, care, service, companionship, society, training and consortium) and any statutory estate recoveries, including James Smith pre-death terror. CP 1-14. Appellant are not making an economic loss claim.

Goolsby was listed and known as a "violent, high impact offender. CP 391-394, 410-416. The grossly negligent supervised offender, Antwone Goolsby, had a criminal history of rape of a 12 year-old girl (forced rape at gunpoint), unlawful possession of a firearm, robbery, harassment, failure to register as a sex offender and delivery/selling of cocaine. CP 342-344, 366, 368, 370-375, 396, 398, 400-404, 433-446, 537-550, 568-779. Goolsby was sentenced to community custody and was to be supervised as a prisoner in the community for 18 to 36 months with the conditions that included work at DOC approved employment, not to consume controlled substances, no gun possession, no unlawful possession of drugs, residential and living arrangements subject to prior approval of DOC. CP 368, 537-550, 564-566. The crime that landed Goolsby into prison and community custody involved a robbery in the first degree. CP 537-550. Goolsby agreed to the conditions of release and CCO Lang was his supervising Community Corrections Officer (CCO). CP 433-446.

Almost a year prior to Goolsby's release, his Community Corrections Officer (CCO), Judith Lang began working with the Risk Management Team to plan for Goolsby's release and transition from Monroe to the community. CP 718-719. On July 23, 2008, CCO Lang wrote that "Goolsby's demeanor and behavior were not suitable to be released in the community." CP 720. As early as July, 2008, Goolsby could not provide an address of where he was living (six months prior to his release) and CCO Lang knew before he was released that this was a major concern and warning sign. CP 720. Before his release, CCO Lang was also concerned that he had a strong affiliation with the notorious Compton Crips. CP 720-721. CCO Lang made special note that she was concerned that Goolsby "did not have a good release plan or a reason to refrain from his historic criminal behaviors." CP 721. Lang noted that Goolsby would not assimilate well into the community, based on his criminal history and behaviors while incarcerated. CP 721-723. On October 27, 2008, DOC and CCO Lang had concerns about him living at a DOC approved location. CP 230, 363-364, 406. Goolsby made his intent to abscond from DOC supervision altogether known before his prison release and wanted to move in with family in Arizona, Compton, California or to Pierce County, even though he could not provide an address. CP 230, 448-494.

DOC informed Goolsby that he would be released homeless if he

could not produce a good address where he would live once released. CP 227-228. Although CCO Lang knew that Goolsby had no housing at least 6 months before he was released from prison, she made no progress in this regard from July 2008 until his release in January 2009. CP 723-724. Lang testified "the biggest issue is trying to find housing for especially sex offenders, Mr. Goolsby." CP 725. Lang listed her concerns of Goolsby being a high-risk offender releasing as homeless. CP 727.

If an offender did not have an approved address, DOC required them to live in a qualified shelter. CP 728. When told that he had to live in a shelter because he had not approved address, Goolsby was argumentative with Lang the entire trip from Monroe to Seattle, refusing to listen to Lang. CP 728, 731. Lang knew that when she picked him up he needed mental health medications and had not had medications for a month. CP 729. CCO Lang confirmed that Goolsby was required to sign in and give his address to King County Sheriff's once a week because he was homeless and was required to register weekly as a Level 3, high-risk sex offender. CP 730. Goolsby signed all of the supervision conditions on January 21, 2009, with Lang and there was certainly a take-charge relationship. CP 731. Goolsby alluded that he could not stay out of drug areas or abandon his gang affiliations. CP 731-732. On his first day out, on January 21, 2009, when CCO Lang ordered Goolsby that he was expected to stay in an approved shelter, he laughed and stated "you expect me to live in a shelter?" CP 733.

From this first day of release, after Goolsby signed the supervision conditions, CCO Lang gave him \$40 and dropped him off at a shelter and she never once supervised him in the community after that date. CP 734. Goolsby did not stay at a shelter that day or any other day. CP 735. CCO Lang picked Goolsby up from his prison release at Monroe on January 21, 2009. CP 726-727, 227-228. From the first day of his release, Goolsby was argumentative on the ride from Monroe to Seattle and again said he wanted to go to California or Pierce County and refused to listen to CCO Lang. Id. When Goolsby was told to stay out of drug areas, he stated "everywhere is a drug area" and he stated that there were too many "Bloods" in Seattle, being that he was a Crip. Id. Goolsby was told he had to stay at a homeless shelter in Seattle and he replied, "You expect me to live in a shelter?" Id. Lang then gave Goolsby \$40 dollars after arriving in Seattle and then showed him the door. CP 227-228.

DOC also expressed concern that Goolsby had an "I will do what I want to do" attitude related to where he would live once out of prison. Id. Prior to his release, on January 15, 2009, Goolsby CCO, Judith Lang, documented that Goolsby was a "high risk offender" releasing homeless and she was already "skeptical about this offender's motivation for change." CP 227-228.

From this day, January 21, 2009, until the day of the murder on August 5, 2009, Judith Lang never saw Goolsby in the community and never enforced the condition that he live at a DOC approved address- she never knew where he lived. Id., CP 334-340. He never even stayed the night at any shelter. CP 227-228.

Goolsby was a sex offender and was required to register every week because he had not address, and he was also had mental health issues and needed medications. Id., CP 331-332, 600-620. Goolsby only registered once, the day he was released from prison, with his address listed as the address he had before prison in Tacoma, not a current or real address. CP 346-356. On January 21, 2009, Goolsby's address was homeless. CP 328. By early February, Goolsby stopped reporting daily as required, and did not take the required UAs. CP 739. The next time that CCO Lang heard anything from Goolsby was when he was arrested just a few days later on January 26, 2009. CP 226. Goolsby tested positive for marijuana use on this date. CP 274-276. On February 17, 2009, Goolsby had a violated his community custody and was found guilty of failing to have a DOC approved residence and employment, failure to report and using illegal drugs. CP 225, 297-301, 303, 318-322, 324-326, 408. This was conclusive evidence that Goolsby intended to live his life as usual as a highly violent criminal with no accountability. On this same date, Goolsby was ordered to come into the DOC office and provide the address of where he was living or he would be detained. Id, CP 312-316.

Two days later, the police in the community again contacted Goolsby. CP 226-227. King County Police arrested Goolsby again on February 20, 2009. CP 741. When CCO Lang did talk to Goolsby in the DOC office, he was being volatile in his speech, complained about not being able to live in Tacoma or Tacoma, could not provide proof that he registered as a sex offender, and did not provide an address of where he was living, just stating he was "staying in a motel." CP 224. Even though DOC professed that they would detain Goolsby if he could not provide an address, they did not. Id. As testified by DOC expert Stough:

This is a case where the actual "community supervision" was non-existent for this violent, murderous gang member and the DOC provided a complete absence of care of the major conditions of supervision, which included field supervision, ensuring that the offender was at an approved address, ensuring that the offender was on his mental health medications and ensuring that the offender went to treatment for his addiction to illegal drugs. The complete failure to supervise this offender in the community by CCO Lang led directly to this offender absconding and related to DOC eventually obtaining a Secretary's Warrant, they grossly violated their own policies in this regard, enabling this offender to escape supervision. The most important aspects of community supervision of a violent offender include the community correctional officer conducting field (community supervision) of an offender and enforcing the condition that the offender is living at a location approved by the DOC. Attached to this declaration is a true and correct copy of the Minimum contacts standard of DOC policy 380.200, which required CCO Lang to have two out of office or field contacts with Goolsby per month. CCO Lang never had one field contact with Goolsby in 8 months. In this case, the community correction officer never supervised Mr. Goolsby in the community, not one time, and Mr. Goolsby never lived at a DOC approved location. DOC's argument that it could not execute the warrant because it had no address is circular because it was DOC's gross negligence that led to the offender's failure to reside at a DOC approved address. DOC exercised no care with regard to the most important aspects of supervision. After the day that CCO Lang picked up Goolsby from Monroe prison, he was not supervised in the community. This naturally led to offender Goolsby to quickly go back to his life of drugs, guns, "gang banging" and violence.

CP 143-144.

Although Goolsby was required to attend narcotics Anonyms three times a week, he only went a couple times during his entire supervision. CP 223. Lang knew that Goolsby was not in community service and did not have a job, violating his conditions. CP 743. On March 2, 2009, CCO Lang only knew that Goolsby was living at a motel, she never went to see any of these motels or whether Goolsby was there. CP 222. On March 3, 2009, CCO Lang noted that Goolsby she did not know where Goolsby was living. CP 418-422. On March 6, 2009, Seattle police went to check the Airline Motel, they walked in on Goolsby in the hotel with another violent sex offender on supervision who ran to the toilet and attempted to flush crack cocaine down the toilet. CP 221, 286-289, 291, 303, 305-306. On March 12, 2009, CCO Lang learned that Goolsby was prostituting girls at the motel and affiliating with drug users. Id., CP 220, 260, 748. On March 23, 2009, DOC found guilty of associating with a drug seller, gang members, and possession of cocaine. CP 219,293-295. On this date, his address was listed as "homeless in Seattle." CP 276. On March 27, 2009, when CCO Lang asked Goolsby where he lived, he was evasive. CP 218. CCO Lang again gave an empty warning that if Goolsby could not provide an approved DOC address where he lived that he would go back to jail. Id., 278-282. CCO Lang admitted in writing that this was a "High need and needs extra attention. Id. By April 2, 2009, CCO noted that Goolsby had failed to start chemical dependency treatment. CP 217. On April 10, 2009, CCO Lang found out that Goolsby was not staying at the shelter he was supposed to stay and represented he was staying and she warned Goolsby "one last time" and given another false warning that he would be arrested and detained if he did not stay at the shelter or approved residence. CP 216. This was the last time DOC had contact with Goolsby before the murder in August. Id. On April 21, 2009, DOC placed a warrant out for Goolsby arrest. Id.

CCO Lang's testimony conclusively proves gross negligence:

- Q. Other than the date you transported Mr. Goolsby from Monroe Prison, did you ever see Mr. Goolsby in the field one time?
- A. I can't recall.
- Q. Based on the chronological notes that we've been going through for the past 90 minutes, so you see anywhere in those chronological notes that you made where you saw Mr. Goolsby in the field <u>one</u> time?
- A. No.
- Q. Based on the chronological notes that we've been going through, do you see anywhere in the chronological notes that you ever attempted to make a field contact with Mr. Goolsby?
- A. Not from the notes, no. (CP 759-760).
- Q. You never saw the offender in the field from 1/21/09 (prison release) to 8/5/09 (James Smith murder), correct?

- A. Correct. (CP 765).
- Q. Did Mr. Goolsby ever provide you with an address?
- A. The physical address, no. (CP 761.)
- Q. From the time that Mr. Goolsby left Monroe and you picked him up till the time of his involvement in this homicide on 8/5/2009, did Mr. Goolsby ever had a DOC-approved housing?
- A. It was not approved by us, no. (CP 763.)
- Q. Based on your chronological notes, was Mr. Goolsby ever on mental health medications?
- A. Not to my knowledge. (CP 763).

CCO Lang only saw Goolsby two other occasions, in her office, after his release. (CP 765). His UA was only taken two times and was positive for illegal drugs. CP 766. Lang was aware that Goolsby was still active as a Compton Crip while under her supervision. CP 765-766. Lang also knew that Goolsby was associating with other offenders, drug dealers and gang members, using illegal drugs, selling drugs and prostituting girls while under her supervision. CP 766. Goolsby never went to narcotics anonymous. CP 776. DOC were grossly negligent and violated policy with regard to the Secretary's Warrant as well, according to expert Stough:

The fact that DOC eventually initiated a bench warrant 5 months after repeated her knowledge that Goolsby was engaging in his historic criminal lifestyle of gangs, drugs, had no address does not absolve DOC's responsibility to apprehend and supervise this offender, especially since DOC was grossly negligent in initiating and prosecuting the warrant and the fact that his CCO Judith Lang never once conducted a field visit did not release them from their obligation to supervise, monitor, locate, investigate, and discover Goolsby's whereabouts or his activities. Instead, the DOC gave final warning after final warning, but failed to enforce the conditions in the first place. This is especially true since DOC knew Goolsby, at one point, was living in a motel selling drugs, prostituting women and taking illegal drugs. As stated in the findings "the peak rates of committing a new crime or violating the terms of parole occur in the first days, weeks and months after release. Clearly, the first days and weeks out of prison are the riskiest for the releases and the general public."

In other words, DOC's failure to act on the clear red flags and warnings that Mr. Goolsby was not complying with the terms of his release, along with the complete absence of his community correctional officer to conduct a single field visit, to make sure he was living where he was supposed to, to get him into consistent drug treatment, to ensure he was on his medications, etc., directly led to him absconding supervision. DOC's failure to ensure that Goolsby had an approved address was particularly egregious in this case because he was a high-level sex offender and required to register his address with local law enforcement once a week, but this condition was not enforced. Had DOC done these things from the beginning, Goolsby would have been under control or incarcerated and would not have absconded and "blown off" supervision completely. Goolsby's acts of absconding and recidivating into his historic criminal behavior are a direct result of the DOC's gross negligence in failing to supervise him from his initial release.

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