L INTRODUCTION

This case involves whether a correctional officer has a tort duty, 

unlimited in time and scope, to apprehend an offender who absconds from

supervision. The trial court correctly concluded no such duty exists. 

Further, the trial court correctly concluded that, even if such a duty exists, 

appellants failed to present any competent evidence establishing causation. 

The trial court' s decision was correct and should be affirmed for the

following reasons. 

First, the trial court properly granted summary judgment because

the Department of Corrections ( "DOC ") did not breach any duty owed to

the plaintiffs under Taggart.' The duty established in Taggart is premised

on the creation of a definite, established, continuing relationship between

the DOC and an offender whereby the community corrections officer can

control" the parolee through the imposition of conditions and by seeking

sanctions for violations of the offender' s parole. While an offender cannot

terminate their period of supervision by absconding, when an offender

does abscond, a community corrections officer no longer has the ability to

control" an offender through the imposition of conditions or by seeking

sanctions for violations of the offender' s parole. As such, DOC did not

breach any duty owed to the plaintiffs in this case because once Mr. 

1 Taggart v. State, 118 Wn.2d 195, 218, 822 P. 2d 243 ( 1992). 

1



Goolsby absconded the community corrections officer lacked the ability to

control Mr. Goolsby' s behavior. 

Second, appellants' assertion DOC has a duty to apprehend a

fugitive offender is without merit. No law enforcement group, including

correctional agencies in the United States, has a tort duty to apprehend

fugitive offenders, as any such duty is contrary to public policy. 

Appellants never address this argument because they cannot refute it. In

2009, the Department of Corrections issued 17, 330 arrest warrants alone. 

The imposition of a duty to apprehend over 17, 000 fugitive offenders in

Washington as proposed by the appellants exposes correctional agencies

to unlimited liability and unnecessarily constrains the discretion a

community corrections officer and other members of law enforcement

need when making decisions based on the best interests of any ongoing

investigations or operations. 

Third, summary judgment is proper because the appellants failed to

present any admissible evidence to establish that Mr. Goolsby ( 1) would

have been apprehended prior to the shooting if DOC acted differently and

2) that if Goolsby had been apprehended prior to the shooting he would

have received a sanction which would have kept him in jail on the day of

the shooting thereby preventing the shooting. Absent such evidence, 
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appellants cannot establish factual causation as the trial court properly

concluded. 

Fourth, summary judgment was appropriate because the

Department of Corrections is not the legal cause of appellants' claims. 

Appellants' theory posits liability on the Department of Corrections based

on the actions of a fugitive over which the Department of Corrections had

no control. Appellants attempt to impose on DOC an unlimited duty to

rehabilitate offenders and an unlimited duty for DOC to search for

fugitives until they are found, or risk incurring liability. Both assertions

should be rejected. Imposition of these two extraordinary duties lacks

common sense and would be poor public policy. 

Finally, the trial court properly granted summary judgment

because appellants' assertion that Mr. Goolsby would not have committed

a crime if DOC monitored him differently is meritless. These types of

failure to rehabilitate" arguments have been previously rejected because

1) they amount to a claim DOC has a duty to rehabilitate offenders, which

it does not, and ( 2) " failure to rehabilitate" arguments are speculative. 

The trial court properly granted summary judgment and the ruling

should be affirmed. 
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II. COUNTER- STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

1. Whether correctional agencies have liability for failing to

find and apprehend fugitives. 

2. Whether the appellants failed to establish factual causation

when there is no admissible competent evidence establishing that

Mr. Goolsby ( 1) would have been apprehended prior to the shooting and

2) that if he had been apprehended prior to the shooting he would have

received a sanction which would have placed him in jail on the day of the

shooting thereby preventing the shooting. 

3. Whether the trial court properly granted summary judgment

based on lack of legal causation when, just as with the police, policy and

common sense dictate that DOC should not be liable for crimes committed

by fugitives from justice simply because DOC is unable to apprehend the

fugitives prior to their committing an additional crime. 

4. Whether appellants' " failure to rehabilitate" theory is

irrelevant when DOC does not have a duty to rehabilitate offenders. 

5. Whether appellants' " failure to rehabilitate" theory is

speculative when there is no admissible competent evidence in the record

establishing if DOC had monitored Goolsby differently he would not have

absconded and/ or engaged in criminal behavior. 
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6. Whether the trial court properly granted summary judgment

based on lack of legal causation when as a matter of law, public policy, 

and common sense, the connection between DOC' s actions and

Mr. Goolsby' s recidivism is too remote to establish liability. 

III. COUNTER - STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

A. Supervision History Of Mr. Goolsby

Mr. Antwane Goolsby was released from Monroe Correctional

Complex ( Monroe) on January 21, 2009, after serving his prison sentence

for a Conspiracy to Commit Robbery in the first degree. CP at 61. He

was sentenced to a term of 18 — 36 months community custody. CP at

350. 

The same day Mr. Goolsby was released, his community

corrections officer, Judith Lang, transported Mr. Goolsby from Monroe to

Seattle. CP at 61. Ms. Lang reviewed with Goolsby his supervision

conditions from the 2004 judgment and sentence and standard conditions

of supervision. CP at 61. He was then transported to the King County

Sheriff s Department to complete sex offender registration. CP at 61. 

Afterwards, he was taken to the Seattle Bread of Life Shelter and directed

to report daily at DOC' s Seattle Day Reporting Office starting the

following day. CP at 61. 
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Mr. Goolsby failed to report the next day and a warrant was issued. 

CP at 61. On January 26, 2009, Mr. Goolsby reported to DOC' s Seattle

Day Reporting Program ( Day Reporting) and was taken into custody. CP

at 61. 

Mr. Goolsby was in custody from January 26, 2009 to February 17, 

2009. CP at 59 -60. A violation hearing was held on February 17, 2009, 

and he was found guilty of failing to report, failing to report a change of

address, and using a controlled substance ( marijuana). CP at 59 -60. He

was sanctioned to credit for time served and released. CP at 59. 

Over the next two weeks, Mr. Goolsby reported to DOC with

regularity. He reported the very next day after being released on February

18th, 

2009. CP at 58. He then reported the remainder of the week on the

19th

and
20th. 

CP at 58 -59. Starting again on Monday the
23rd

of

February, he reported every day through Friday the
27th. 

CP at 57 -58. He

reported on the following Monday, March 2, 2009, and again on March

4th. 

CP at 56. 

On March
4th, 

his failure to report the previous day was addressed. 

Mr. Goolsby explained he had been busy trying to comply with his other

conditions of supervision and was unable to make his appointment. CP at

56. The community corrections officer confirmed Mr. Goolsby had

obtained a copy of his birth certificate so he could begin receiving public



benefits, a prerequisite to receiving mental health treatment. He was also

admitted into the DOC chemical dependency program with a start date of

March 11, 2009. Additionally, Mr. Goolsby self - reported he was now

staying at the Airline Motel, which was confirmed by Detective Fields

from the Seattle Police Department on March 4, 2009. CP at 55. 

Mr. Goolsby again reported as required on the
5th

and
6th

of March. 

CP at 56. On March 6, 2009, Rocky Bronkhorst, a DOC supervisor, also

made a field visit to Mr. Goolsby at the Airline Motel. CP at 55. While

there, Bronkhorst observed one of the residents trying to flush what

appeared to be drugs down the toilet and Goolsby attempted to block the

officer' s way. CP at 55. Mr. Goolsby was detained by Bronkhorst and

transported to jail. 

Mr. Goolsby was in custody from March 6, 2009 until March 23, 

2009. CP at 53. A violation hearing was held on March 23, 2009, and

Goolsby was found guilty of associating with known drug users and gang

members. CP at 53. He was sanctioned to credit for time served and

ordered to report daily for 30 days. CP at 53. Mr. Goolsby reported to

DOC as directed the next day. CP at 53. 
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From March 24, 2009 through April 9, 2009, Mr. Goolsby reported

to DOC approximately thirteen times. CP at 50 -53. During this time

period, Mr. Goolsby reentered treatment and was scheduled for a mental

health evaluation on April 21, 2009. CP at 50. 

On Friday April 10, 2009, Mr. Goolsby reported to Day Reporting

as directed. CP at 50. Shon Cornett, a community corrections officer at

Day Reporting called the Downtown Emergency Service Center to see if

Mr. Goolsby was staying there at night as directed. CP at 50. The

center' s records indicated Goolsby had not been staying at the shelter

since March 30, 2009. CP at 50. That same day, Ms. Lang met with

Goolsby and warned him that any future failure to stay at the shelter

would result in a violation and possible arrest. CP at 50. On April 16, 

2009, DOC learned Mr. Goolsby had failed to attend a group treatment

meeting the previous day. CP at 50. A warrant was immediately

requested and issued. 

Appellants' assertion at page 21 of their opening brief ( Br. 

Appellant) that DOC did not request a warrant for Goolsby until May 7, 

2009 is factually incorrect. A close reading of the record shows on May 7, 

2009, the community corrections officer made a notation concerning

events which occurred on April 16, 2009, when she requested a
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Secretary' s Warrant because Mr. Goolsby' s location was unknown. CP at

49. The Secretary' s Warrant was issued on April 17, 2009. CP at 813 -17. 

Approximately four months later, on August 5, 2009, Mr. 
Bernard2

drove Mr. Goolsby to a party in Tacoma. Mr. Goolsby shot and killed

Mr. Smith. Mr. Bernard was arrested the next day for rendering criminal

assistance. CP at 68. Mr. Goolsby was later apprehended in Las Vegas on

August 24, 2009. CP at 47. 

B. There Is No Evidence In The Record That Goolsby Would
Have Been In Jail At The Time Of The Shooting

In appellants' opening brief, appellants assert incorrectly that

Mr. Stough testified Mr. Goolsby would have been in jail on the date of

the shooting if DOC had acted differently. Specifically, appellants state: 

Corrections expert William Stough explained that

regardless of the date that DOC would have apprehended

Goolsby, Goolsby would have been in violation of many
conditions of supervision, each one of which could result in

confinement up to 60 days, or a total of 420 days or more. 
Stough testified given his experience, Goolsby' s history, 
and recent sanctioning practices with regard to Goolsby, 
Goolsby would have been in jail on the day of the murder
of James Smith. 

Br. Appellant at 63. 

This statement is not supported by the record or any citation to the

record. A close reading of the record shows Mr. Stough never offered any

Mr. Bernard was also on DOC supervision. He last reported to DOC on July
30, 2009. His next scheduled report date was August 6, 2009. CP at 70. 
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opinions stating Mr. Goolsby would have been apprehended prior to the

shooting or offered any opinion about what sanction Mr. Goolsby would

have received if he had been apprehended. 

DOC noted to the trial court that Mr. Stough failed to offer

opinions on these issues and argued that any opinion by Mr. Stough on

these issues would be inadmissible in any event because he lacks the

personal experience to offer an opinion on what sanction Mr. Goolsby

would have received. CP at 787 -90. Mr. Stough has never worked under

the sanctioning system used by DOC; he has never been a judge or a DOC

Hearings Officer. CP at 787 -90. Further, there is no statistical evidence in

the record concerning DOC sanctions for similar violations, nor does

Mr. Stough have the experience to evaluate statistical data. CP at 787 -90. 

The record therefore does not support the assertion that Mr. Goolsby

would have been apprehended and in jail at the time of the shooting. 

After hearing argument from counsel on the motions, the court

granted summary judgment. CP at 825 -27. 

IV. ARGUMENT

A review of a trial court' s ruling granting summary judgment is de

novo. Trimble v. Washington. State Univ., 140 Wn.2d 88, 993 P. 2d 259

2000). The trial court properly granted summary judgment because the

duty in Taggart does not create a duty to apprehend fugitive offenders
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who abscond from supervision, appellants did not establish that DOC' s

actions were the proximate cause of their injuries, and appellants' 

speculative " failure to rehabilitate" arguments fail to rebut the strong

public policy reasons for not imposing such a duty. 

A. The Trial Court Properly Granted Summary Judgment
Because DOC Does Not Have A Duty To Apprehend Fugitive
Felons

Appellants assert the trial court erred in granting summary

judgment by arguing the Department of Corrections has a duty to

apprehend fugitive offenders. This assertion is without merit. 

1. DOC Did Not Breach Any Duty Owed To The

Appellants

The trial court properly granted summary judgment because, when

an offender absconds, a community corrections officer can no longer

control the offender' s behavior through the imposition, monitoring, or

enforcement of conditions. When Mr. Goolsby absconded from

supervision, DOC no longer had the ability to control Mr. Goolsby and as

such did not breach any duty owed to the appellants arising under Taggart. 

Washington recognizes the general rule that there is no duty to

control the conduct of a third party so as to prevent him from causing

physical harm to another. Taggart v. State, 118 Wn.2d 195, 822 P. 2d 243

1992). However, in Taggart, the court recognized an exception to the

general rule and held that the relationship between a community
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corrections officer and a parolee gives rise to a duty on the part of the

community corrections officer to control the conduct of a parolee. Id. at

219. The court premised this duty on the Restatement (Second) of Torts, 

Section 319 which provides, " One who takes charge of a third person, 

whom he knows or should know to be likely to cause bodily harm to

others if not controlled, is under a duty to exercise reasonable care to

control the third person to prevent him from doing such harm." Id. 

In finding that a community corrections officer " takes charge" of a

parolee, and therefore has a duty to control the parolee, the court noted

several aspects of the relationship between the two that gives rise to the

duty. The court noted as follows: 

Parole officers have the statutory authority under

RCW 72. 04A.080 to supervise parolees. 

The State can regulate a parolee' s movements within the

state, require the parolee to report to a parole officer, 

impose special conditions such as refraining from using
alcohol or undergoing drug rehabilitation or psychiatric
treatment, and order the parolee not to possess firearms. 

The parole officer is the person through whom the State

ensures that the parolee obeys the terms of his or her

parole. Additionally, parole officers are, or should be, 

aware of their parolees' criminal histories, and monitor, or

should monitor their parolee' s progress during parole. 
Because of these factors, we hold that parole officers have

taken charge" of the parolees they supervise for purposes
of section 319. When a parolee' s criminal history and
progress during parole show that the parolee is likely to
cause bodily harm to others if not controlled, the parole
officer is under a duty to exercise reasonable care to control



the parolee and to prevent hint or her from doing such
harm. 

Taggart, 118 Wn.2d at 219 -20. 

The Supreme Court noted in Taggart that the duty it created only

applies upon a showing of a " definite, established and continuing

relationship between the defendant and the third party." Taggart, 118

Wn.2d at 219. In a subsequent case, the court framed the question of

whether a duty exists as being whether the actor has taken charge of the

third party and whether the actor knows or should know of the danger

posed by the third party. Bishop v. Miche, 137 Wn.2d 518, 526, 973 P. 2d

465 ( 1999). 

The need for the community corrections officer to have actually

taken charge" of the parolee through the existence of a " definite, 

established and continuing relationship" before a duty to control arises is

also reflected in the nature of the community corrections officer' s duty

once it does arise. The community corrections officer' s duty is to

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